
B.R. GUPTA & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

K-55, Connaught Circus, New Delhi-110001

Independent Auditor's Report 

To The Members of Bioseed India Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited theaccompanying financial statements of Bioseed India Limited ("the Company"), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information(hereinafter referred to as "the 
financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaidfinancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the loss and total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinionon the financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to 
Board's Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is resrionsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equityand cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operatu:i· 16===::::-.... 
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preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in "Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B".

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

For B.R. Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants, 

Firm Registration Number 001478N/N500005 

(Deepak Agarwal) 

Partner 

Membership Number 073696 

Place of Signature: New Delhi 

Date: 2 6 APR 2019 



























































































































































































































DCM SHRIRAM AQUA FOODS LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 

Note 28 Liquidity risk management 

Maturities of financials liabilities 
The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevent maturity groupings based on 
their contractual maturities for all financial liabilities 

The amount disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow. 

Contractual maturities of financial 
I 
less than 1 

I 
Between 1 year 

liabilities year to 5 year I 
31 March 2019 
Non-derivatives 
Borrowings 
Trade Pai'.ables 123 
Total non-derivative liabilities 123 

Contractual maturities of financial Less than 1 
liabilities year 31 March 2018 
Non-derivatives 
Borrowings 
Trade Pai:'.ables 46 

Total non-derivative liabilities 46 

1 

1 

Between 1 year 
Ito 5 year 

1 

1 

Total 

1 
123 

124 

Total 

1 

46 

47 



























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































PT SHRIRAM GENETICS 

Financial Statements 
As of March 31, 2019 and for the Year Ended 
Translation Into United States Dollar Currency 



ANWAR & REKAN 

Letter No. AR/S/237/19 

The Shareholders, Board of Commissioners and Director 
PT Shriram Genetics 

$ i)i=l( 
~ IHIEiNAJIONAL 

The accompanying financial position of PT Shriram Genetics (the Company), which comprises the 
statement of financial position as of March 31, 2019, and the statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, changes in capital deficiency, and cash flows for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, are presented in United 
States Dollar. The financial statements in United States Dollar are derived from the audited financial 
statements, which we have expressed an unmodified opinion with emphasis of matter paragraph on 
those financial statements on April 9, 2019 . The translation from Indonesian Rupiah into United States 
Dollar is based on the guidelines regarding translation to the presentation currency stated in the PSAK 
No. 10, "The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Difference". 

The accompanying financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31 , 2019 are prepared 
solely for the information and use of the Company's management and should not be distributed to or 
used by parties other than the Company's management. 

REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
ANWAR & REKAN 

Patricia, CPA 
Public Accountant Registration No. AP. 0749 

Apri19, 2019 
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PT SHRIRAM GENETICS 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
      As of March 31, 2019  

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise stated)  
 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 
which are an integral part of the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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 Notes 

 
2019 

 
2018 

 ASSETS 
      

       CURRENT ASSETS 
      Cash in bank 4,24,25 

 
105,160 

 
90,060 

 Trade receivables - related party 5,23,24,25 
 

- 
 

381,462 
 Other receivables - related party 6,23,24,25 

 
65,947 

 
65,947 

 Inventories 7 
 

1,092,597 
 

274,338 
 Advances and prepaid expenses  8 

 
115,061 

 
58,004 

 Total Current Assets 
  

1,378,765  869,811 
  

 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

      Fixed assets - net 9 
 

22,334 
 

27,453 
 Deferred tax assets 10c 

 
29,280 

 
20,820 

 Other assets 24,25 
 

2,469 
 

2,539 
 Total Non-current Assets 

  
54,083  50,812 

  
TOTAL ASSETS 

  
1,432,848  920,623 

 

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PT SHRIRAM GENETICS 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) 

      As of March 31, 2019  
(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise stated)  

 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 
which are an integral part of the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 
 

2 

 
 Notes 

 
2019 

 
2018 

 LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL 
DEFICIENCIES 

       
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

      Trade payables 11,24,25      

Related party 23 
 

1,160,154 
 

1,281,233 
 Third parties 

  
44,793 

 
16,936 

 Other payables - related party 12,23,24,25  256,101  266,101  

Advance payment - related party  13  1,029,618  -  

Accrued expenses 14,24,25 
 

49,578 
 

20,973 
 Taxes payable 10a 

 
5,173 

 
2,247 

 Consumer financing payables 
  

 
           short - term portion 15,24,25 

 
4,408 

 
4,561 

 Total Current Liabilities 
  

2,549,825 
 

1,592,051 
  

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
      Consumer financing payables 
  

 
           long - term portion 15,24,25 

 
1,835 

 
6,459 

 Post-employment benefit obligation 16 
 

117,120 
 

83,278 
 Total Non-current Liabilities 

  
118,955 

 
89,737 

  
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

  
2,668,780 

 
1,681,788 

 

       CAPITAL DEFICIENCIES 
      Share capital, US$ 1 par value per share 

             Authorized and issued capital - 
           300,000 shares 17 

 
300,000  300,000 

 Effect of changes in foreign  
  

  
  exchange difference 

  
22,122  1,156 

 Deficits 
  

(1,558,054 ) (1,062,321 ) 
 
CAPITAL DEFICIENCIES 

 
  (1,235,932 ) (761,165 ) 

 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL     

DEFICIENCIES 
  

1,432,848 
 

920,623 
 

        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PT SHRIRAM GENETICS 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

For the Year Ended  
March 31, 2019 

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise stated)  
 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 
which are an integral part of the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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 Notes 

 
2019 

 
2018 

 
SALES 18,23 

 
959,339  2,288,588 

 
   

  
  COST OF GOODS SOLD 19 

 
(633,154 ) (1,756,774 ) 

       GROSS PROFIT 
  

326,185  531,814 
        

Research expenses 20 
 

(56,789 ) (27,469 ) 
General and administrative expenses 21 

 
(617,559 ) (515,588 ) 

Other expenses - net 22 
 

(116,951 ) (187,919 ) 

OPERATING LOSS 
  

(465,114 ) (199,162 ) 

       
Finance cost 23  (58,817 ) (30,433 ) 

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 
  

(523,931 ) (229,595 ) 
       

DEFERRED INCOME TAX BENEFIT 10c 
 

13,856 
 

2,308 
 

NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR 
  

(510,075 ) (227,287 ) 

       

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE  
INCOME (LOSS) 

  
 
   Item that will be reclassified 

to profit or loss 
  

 
   Effect of changes in foreign  

exchange difference 
  

20,966  22,983 
 Item that will not be reclassified 

to profit or loss 
  

 
   Remeasurements of post- 

employment benefits 16 
 

19,123  (3,672 ) 
Related income tax 10c 

 
(4,781 ) 918 

 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR 

  
35,308  20,229 

 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS  
 FOR THE YEAR 

  
(474,767 ) (207,058 ) 

      
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 PT SHRIRAM GENETICS  
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL DEFICIENCIES 

For the Year Ended  
March 31, 2019  

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise stated)  
 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 
which are an integral part of the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Share Capital  

Effect of 
changes 
in foreign 
exchange 
difference  Deficits  

Total Capital 
Deficiencies 

         
         

Balance as of  
April 1, 2017 

 
300,000  (21,827 ) (832,280 ) (554,107 ) 

          

Net loss for the year  -  -  (227,287 ) (227,287 ) 
       

 

  

Other comprehensive loss for  
the year 

 
-  22,983  (2,754 ) 20,229  

          

          

 
Balance as of  

March 31, 2018 

 

300,000  1,156  (1,062,321 ) (761,165 ) 
          

Net loss for the year  -  -  (510,075 ) (510,075 ) 
          

Other comprehensive loss for  
the year 

 
- 

 
20,966  14,342  35,308  

          

          

 
Balance as of  

March 31, 2019 

 

300,000 

 

22,122  (1,558,054 ) (1,235,932 ) 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



PT SHRIRAM GENETICS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended  
March 31, 2019 

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise stated)  
 

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 
which are an integral part of the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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        2019     2018   
             
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES        
Loss before income tax    (523,931)    (229,595)   
Adjustments for: 
 Disposal assets     -   74   
 Employee benefits expenses    55,422   21,867 
 Adjustment employee benefits    -   (12,635) 
 Effect of changes in  
  foreign exchange difference    20,080   21,316 
 Depreciation of fixed assets    4,163   4,484 
           
Operating loss before changes in working capital    (444,266)   (194,489)              (443,642 ) 
Changes in working capital:  
 Trade receivables - related party    381,462   49,673 
 Other receivables    -   (1,736) 
 Inventories    (818,259)   201,787 
 Advances and prepaid expenses    (57,057)      (530)  
 Other assets    70   (14) 
 Trade payables    (93,222)   799,634 
 Other payable - related party    (10,000)   (668,870) 
 Advance payment - related party     1,029,618   - 
 Accrued expenses    28,605     (104,360)  
 Taxes payable    2,926   296   
           
Cash generated from operation    464,143   275,880 
           
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities    19,877   81,391 
           
 
CASH FLOWS FOR INVESTING ACTIVITY 
Acquisition of fixed assets    -   (3,923) 
           
CASH FLOWS FOR FINANCING ACTIVITY  
Payment of consumer financing payable    (4,777)   (4,561) 
           
NET INCREASE IN CASH IN BANK    15,100   72,907 
 
CASH IN BANK AT THE BEGINNING OF YEAR               90,060      17,153    
           
CASH IN BANK AT THE END OF YEAR     105,160   90,060  
      

 
  

 
 

 



PT SHRIRAM GENETICS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As of  March 31, 2019  
And for the Year then Ended 

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise stated)  
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1. GENERAL 
 
PT Shriram Genetics (“the Company”) was established based on Notarial Deed of  
Adrian Djuaini, S.H, No. 55 dated September 25, 2012. The deed of establishment was approved by 
the Minister of Law and Human Rights of the Republic of Indonesia in his decision letter  
No. AHU-0089065.AH.01.09.Year 2012 dated October 9, 2012. 

 

The Company’s Articles of Association have been amended several times. The latest amendment 
was based on Deed No. 5 of Yulita Harastiati, S.H., dated October 21, 2014 pursuant to the change 
in the Company’s Board of Commissioners. This amendment was received and recorded by the 
Minister of Law and Human Rights of the Republic of Indonesia through his letter  
No. AHU-36868.40.22.2014 dated October 22, 2014. 
 
The Company was established for unlimited period. 
 
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the scope of its activities is engaged in 
production of seeds. The Company started its commercial operation on July 1, 2013. The Company 
is domiciled in Mayapada Tower 1, 7th Floor Suite 06E Jendral Sudirman Street Kav 28, Karet 
Setiabudi, South Jakarta. 
 
The Parent Company is Bioseeds Holdings Pte. Ltd., which is incorporated and domiciled in 
Singapore. 

 
The Boards of Commissioners and Director and Employees 
 
The members of the Boards of Commissioners and Director of the Company as of March 31, 2019 
and 2018 are as follows:      

           

President Commissioner : Jitender Kumar Jain 
Commissioner  : Parveen Kumar Aggarwal 
Commissioner : Paresh Kumar Verma  
 
President Director : Joseph Abraham Anand 

  
As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had a total of 7 and 8 permanent employees 
(unaudited), respectively. 
 
Issuance of Financial Statements 
 
The financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Director of the Company, who is 
responsible for the preparation and completion of financial statements, on April 9, 2019. 
 

  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Compliance with Financial Accounting Standards (SAK) 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indonesian Financial Accounting 
Standards which include, the Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (PSAK) and 
Interpretation of Financial Accounting  Standards  (ISAK)  issued  by Financial Accounting  Standards 
Board  of the Indonesian Institute of Accountant (DSAK-IAI). 

Basis of Measurement in Preparation of Financial Statements  

The financial statements have been prepared on going-concern assumption and basis of the 
historical cost,  except for certain accounts which are measured on the bases described in the related 
accounting policies. 

The financial statements also have been prepared based on the accrual basis, except for the 
statement of cash flows, which are prepared under the cash basis. The statement of cash flows has 
been prepared based on the indirect method by classifying cash flows on the basis of operating, 
investing and financing activities. 



PT SHRIRAM GENETICS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As of  March 31, 2019  
And for the Year then Ended 

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise stated)   
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Basis of Measurement in Preparation of Financial Statements (continued) 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with 
those adopted in the preparation of the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2018, 
except for the adoption of several amendments and improvements to PSAK effective April 1, 2018 as 
disclosed in this note.  

Unless otherwise stated, all figures presented in the financial statements are stated in United States 
(US) Dollar. The financial statements of the Company in Indonesian Rupiah have been translated 
into US Dollar using the following procedures: 

(a) Monetary assets and liabilities are translated using closing rate. 
(b) Equity are translated using exchange rates at the date of transactions. 
(c) Income and expenses are translated using exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 
(d) All resulting differences are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indonesian Financial Accounting Standards 
requires management to make judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense.  Although 
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge and judgment of current events and 
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree 
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements are disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements. 

 
 

 Adoption of Amendments to PSAK  
 

The Company has adopted several amendments to PSAK that are mandatory for application 
effective April 1, 2018. The adoption of the following amendments to PSAK did not result in 
substantial changes to the Company’s accounting policies and had no material effect on the 
amounts reported in the financial period for the current or prior years: 

 

• Amendments to PSAK 2: Statement of Cash Flows, on Disclosure Initiative 
• Amendments to PSAK 46: Income Taxes, on Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized 

Losses 
 

Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances 
 
a.  Functional and Presentation Currency 
 

 The functional currency of the Company is Indonesian Rupiah (Rupiah).  
 
 The presentation currency used in the preparation of the financial statements is the United 

States Dollar (USD).  At the end of each reporting period, the assets and liabilities of the 
Company are translated into the presentation currency at the spot rate which is the exchange 
rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their profit or loss are translated at the 
average rate during the period.  The resulting differences arising from translations of the 
financial statements of the Company are included in other comprehensive income and presented 
as part of “The effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Difference” in the statements of changes 
in equity. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



PT SHRIRAM GENETICS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As of  March 31, 2019  
And for the Year then Ended 

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise stated)  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances (continued) 
  

b.  Transactions and Balances 
 
 Foreign currencies transactions are translated in to respective functional currency of the 

Company using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 
 

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of 
exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary items that are 
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 

 

 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items and on retranslation of 
monetary items are included in the profit or loss. 

 

 As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the exchange rate used based on rate by management was 
Rp 14,241 and Rp 13,764, respectively. 

 
Transactions with Related Parties 
 

In accordance with PSAK No. 7, “Related Party Disclosures”, parties are considered to be related if 
one party has the ability to control (by way of ownership, directly or indirectly) or exercise significant 
influence (by way of participation in the financial and operating policies) over the other party in 
making financial and operating decisions. 
 
All significant transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements. 

 
Financial Instruments 
 
Financial Assets 
 
All financial assets are recognized and derecognized on trade date where the purchase or sale of a 
financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the 
timeframe established by the marketplace concerned. 
 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: (i) financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss, (ii) loans and receivables, (iii) held to maturity investment and (iv) available for 
sale financial assets. 

 
As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company only had financial assets classified as loans and 
receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets for maturities 
shorter than twelve than twelve months; otherwise they are classified as non-current asset. The 
Company’s loans and receivables comprised of cash in bank, trade receivables related party, other 
receivables related party and other assets in the statement of financial position. 
 
Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus any transaction costs and 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any 
impairment. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets 
have ceased to exist or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
The Company classifies its financial liabilities into two categories (i) at fair value through profit or loss 
and (ii) financial liabilities measured at amortized cost. 
 



PT SHRIRAM GENETICS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As of  March 31, 2019  
And for the Year then Ended 

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise stated)   
 

 

 
 

9 
 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Financial Instruments (continued) 
 

Financial Liabilities (continued) 
 

As at March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company only had financial liabilities measured at amortized 
cost that comprised of trade payables, other payable - related party, accrued expenses and 
consumer financing payable. After the initial recognition which is at fair value plus transaction costs, 
the Company measures all financial liabilities at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.  
Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expired. 
 

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities 
 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of financial 
position when, and only when, 1) the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognized amounts and 2) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.  
 
Impairment of Financial Assets 
 

At each statement of financial position date, management assesses whether there is any objective 
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.  A financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is an objective 
evidence of impairment.  
 

For financial asset measured at amortized cost, loss is measured as the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at original 
effective interest rate of the financial assets.  The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced 
either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognized in 
profit or loss. 

 

Management initially assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for 
financial assets that are individually significant. If the Company determines that no objectives 
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset whether significant or not, it 
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively 
assesses them for impairment. 
 
Estimation of Fair Value 
 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal market or, 
in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The 
fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. 
 

When available, the Company measures the fair value of a financial instrument using the quoted 
price in an active market for that instrument. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the 
Company uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
Cash in Banks 
 

Cash in banks represent cash in banks neither used as collateral nor restricted.  

 
Inventories 
 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost of inventories is carried on the 
average cost method and includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing 
them to their present location and condition. Allowance for decline in value of inventories, which is 
provided to reduce the carrying value of inventories to their net realizable value, is determined based 
on a review of the condition of the individual inventory items at the end of the year. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Prepaid Expenses 

 
Prepaid expenses are amortized over their beneficial periods using the straight-line method. 
 
Fixed Assets 

 
Fixed assets are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an asset comprises its purchases price and 
any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended 
use. Subsequent to initial recognition, fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be reliably measured. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to profit or loss. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized during the 
financial year in which they are incurred. 
 
Depreciation of fixed assets is computed using the straight-line method, based upon the estimated 
economic useful lives of the related fixed assets, as follows: 
 

          Years 
   
 Vehicles       8 
 Machineries       8 
 Office equipments       4 – 8 
 Furniture and fixtures       4  
 

The estimated useful life, residual value, and depreciation method of fixed assets are reviewed at 
each financial year end with the effect of any changes in accounting estimate accounted for on a 
prospective basis. 
 
An item of fixed asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on recognition of the asset, calculated as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is recognized 
in profit or loss in the year the item it is derecognized.  

 

Impairment of Non-financial Assets 
 
Non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation but tested 
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they 
might be impaired. Non-financial assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at 
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at 
each reporting date. 
 
Post-employment Benefit Obligation 

 
The Company provides defined post-employment benefits to their employees in accordance with 
Indonesian Labour Law No. 13/2003.  
 

The Company’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated as the present value 
of the post-employment benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The post-employment 
benefit obligation is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method which is usually dependent 
on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Post-employment Benefit Obligation (continued) 

 
Remeasurements  of  post-employment  benefit  obligation,  comprise  of  a) actuarial gains and 
losses, b) the return of plan assets, excluding interest, and c) the effect of asset ceiling, excluding 
interest, are recognized immediately in the other comprehensive income in the period in which they 
occur. Remeasurements  are  not  reclassified  to  profit  or  loss  in  the  subsequent periods. 
 
The Company’s recognizes the (1) service costs, comprising of current service cost, past-service 
cost, and any gain or loss on settlement, and (2) net interest expense immediately in profit or loss. 
 
Revenue and Expense Recognition 

 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.  Revenue is recognized when the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and there is actual delivery 
made and the same is accepted by the customer. 
 
Expenses are recognized when these are incurred (accrual basis). 
 
Income Tax 
 

 Income tax expense represent the sum of the current tax and deferred tax. 
 
 Tax is recognized as income or an expense and included in profit and loss for the period, except to the 

extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is recognized outside profit or loss. Tax that 
relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive 
income and tax that relates to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity. 

 
i. Current Tax 

 
The current tax payable is based on taxable income for the year. Taxable income differs  from  
profit  as  reported  in  the  respective  profit  or  loss  and other comprehensive income of  the 
companies in the Company because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable nor deductible. The 
respective current tax liability of each entity in the Company is calculated using tax rates that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 
Management periodically evaluates the amount reported in the Annual Tax Return (SPT) in relation 
to the circumstances in which the applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and, if 
necessary, the management will calculate the amount of provision that may arise. 
 

ii. Deferred Tax 
 

Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes at the reporting date. 

 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of 
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available against 
which deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilized 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Such deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary differences arises from (a) the initial 
recognition of goodwill; (b) or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is (i) not a business 
combination, and (ii) at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable 
profit or loss.   
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Income Tax (continued) 
 

ii. Deferred Tax (continued) 
     

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part 
of the benefit of that deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are 
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable 
that future taxable income will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities can be offset if, and only if, (a) there is a legally enforceable right 
to offset the current tax assets and liabilities and (b) the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to 
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

 
 
3.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS 

 
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future years. 

 
Judgments  
 
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognized in the financial statements: 

 

Determination of Functional Currency 
 

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. This is the currency that mainly influences the sales price for goods or services, the 
currency of the country whose competitive forces and regulations mainly determined the sales price 
of goods and services, or the currency that mainly influences labor, material and other cost of 
providing the goods and services. When the indicators are mixed, the management made judgment 
to determine the most appropriate functional currency to describe the economic effect of underlying 
transactions, events and conditions of the Company’s operations. 

 

Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
 
The Company determines the classifications of certain assets and liabilities as financial assets and 
financial liabilities by judging if they meet the definition set forth in PSAK No. 55 (Revised 2014).  The 
financial assets and financial liabilities are accounted for in accordance with the Company’s 
accounting policies disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements. 
 
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

 
The key assumptions related to the future and the main sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next year are disclosed below. The Company based its assumptions 
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.  
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS (continued) 
 

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued) 
 

Existing conditions and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes 
or conditions arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the 
assumptions when they occur. 
 
Impairment of trade receivables and other receivable 
 
Impairment of trade receivables and other receivable is established when there is objective evidence 
that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to original term of debts. An 
assessment is made at each statement of financial position date of whether there is any indication of 
impairment or whether there is any indication that an impairment loss previously recognized in prior 
years may no longer exist or may have decreased. Where the actual results differ from the amounts 
that were initially assessed, such differences will result in a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of trade receivables within the next financial year. The carrying amount of the trade 
receivables and other receivable is disclosed in Notes 5 and 6 to the financial statements. 
 
Impairment of Inventories 
 
Management reviews aging analysis at each statement of financial position date, and makes 
allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for use 
in production. Management estimates the net realizable value of such finished goods and work-in-
progress based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The carrying 
amount of the inventories is disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. 

 
Useful Lives of Fixed Assets 
 
Fixed assets is depreciated using the straight-line method based on estimated useful lives of 4 - 8 
years, which is the common life expectancy applied in the industry.  Changes in the pattern of usage 
and the level of technological development could impact the economic useful life and residual value 
of fixed assets.  Therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised. The net carrying amount of 
fixed assets at the statement of financial position date is disclosed in Note 9 to the financial 
statements. 

 
Post-employment Benefit Obligation 
 
The determination of the Company’s post-employment benefit obligation and employee benefits 
expense is dependent on selection of certain assumptions, those assumptions include among others, 
discount rates, future annual salary increase, annual employee turn-over rate, disability rate, 
retirement age and mortality rate. Actual results that differ from the Company’s assumptions are 
accounted in accordance with the policies as mentioned in Note 16 to the financial statements. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain 
during the ordinary course of business. The Company recognizes liability for expected income tax 
based on estimates of whether additional corporate income tax will be due. Where the final tax 
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognized, such 
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such 
determination is made. The Company’s carrying amount of taxes payable and deferred tax liability 
are disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements.  
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4. CASH IN BANK 
 

 
 

5. TRADE RECEIVABLES - RELATED PARTY 
 

This account represents trade receivables from PT Shriram Seed Indonesia, a related party, 
amounting to US$ 381,462 as of March 31, 2018. 

 

The Company’s management believes that trade receivable can be collected, thus no allowance for 
impairment losses was provided. 

 
6. OTHER RECEIVABLES - RELATED PARTY 

 

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, this account represents other receivables from PT Shriram Seed 
Indonesia, a related party, each amounting to US$ 65,947, respectively. 
 

Based on the review of the status of other receivables account at the end of each year, the 
Company’s management does not provide a provision for impairment because they believe that other 
receivables are fully collectible.  

 

7. INVENTORIES 
 

 

Based on management review, there are write off finished good inventories amounted to  
US$ 50,634 and US$ 127,861 as of March 31, 2019 and 2018 have been charged to other expenses 
- net (Note 22), respectively. 
 

Management believes that carrying amounts of inventories do not exceed their net realizable values, 
therefore the Company did not provide an allowance to adjust the carrying amounts of inventories to 
their net realizable values. 
 

8. ADVANCES AND PREPAID EXPENSES  
 

 

  
2019 

 
2018 

Standard Chartered Bank 
   

 
Rupiah 

 
52,852 

 
68,114 

United States dollar 
 

52,308 
 

21,946  

Total 
 

105,160 
 

90,060 

  
2019 

 
2018 

Raw material     

Cobs and parent seeds  83,690  28,405 

Material goods  85,396  95,271 
Work in process (clean seeds)     

B 54  52,832  5,856 
B 70  1,650  12,731 
B 89  42,990  92,424 
B 99  1,451  - 

Finish good (packed seeds)     
B 54  609,173  3,219 
B 70  16,135  36,432 
B 89  199,280  - 

Total  1,092,597  274,338 

  
2019 

 
2018 

Advances 
 

84,538 
 

34,579 

  
 

 
 

Prepaid expenses 
 

 
 

 
School fee 

 
11,282 

 
11,673 

Rental of building 
 

6,191 
 

2,864 
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8. ADVANCES AND PREPAID EXPENSES (continued) 
 

 
9. FIXED ASSETS - NET 

 
 

                                                                2019    

 
Beginning 
Balance  

 
Additions  

 
Deductions 

 Effect of 
changes in 

foreign 
exchange 
difference 

 

 
Ending 

Balance 
Acquisition Cost          
Vehicles 27,698  -  -  (928 ) 26,770 
Machineries 3,923  -  -  (131 ) 3,792 
Office equipments 3,978  -  -  (133 ) 3,845 
Furniture and fixtures 280  -  -  (10 ) 270 
Total Acquisition 

Cost 35,879  -  - 
 

(1,202 ) 34,677 
          

Accumulated        
      Depreciation      

  
  

Vehicles 5,770  3,316  -  (163 ) 8,923 
Machineries 131  470  -  (2 ) 599 
Office equipments 2,257  366  -  (72 ) 2,551 
Furniture and fixtures 268  11  -  (9 ) 270 
Total Accumulated 

Depreciation 8,426  4,163  - 
 

(246)  12,343 
 
Net Book Value 27,453     

  
 22,334 

 

                                                                2018    

 
Beginning 
Balance  

 
Additions  

 
Deductions 

 Effect of 
changes in 

foreign 
exchange 
difference 

 

 
Ending 

Balance 
Acquisition Cost          
Vehicles 28,604  -  -  (906 ) 27,698 
Machineries -  3,923  -  -  3,923 
Furniture and fixtures 1,028  -  716  (32 ) 280 
Office equipments 4,446  -  327  (141 ) 3,978 
Total Acquisition 

Cost 34,078  3,923  1,043 
  

(1079 ) 35,879 
          

Accumulated        
      Depreciation      

  
  

Vehicles 2,396  3,546  -  (172 ) 5,770 
Machineries -  133  -  (2 ) 131 
Furniture and fixtures 765  194  687  (4 ) 268 
Office equipments 2,023  611  307  (70 ) 2,257 
Total Accumulated 

Depreciation 5,184  4,484  994 
  

(248 ) 8,426 
 
Net Book Value 28,894     

  
 27,453 

  
2019 

 
2018 

Rental of land 
 

5,845 
 

2,107 
Professional Fee  4,852  3,871 
Insurance  2,353  2,910 

Total 
 

115,061 
 

58,004  
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9. FIXED ASSETS – NET (continued) 
 

In 2019 and 2018, depreciation expenses of US$ 4,163 and US$ 4,484, respectively, have been 
charged to general and administrative expenses (Note 21). 
 

Based on management’s review, there are no events or changes in circumstances which may 
indicate impairment of fixed assets as of March 31, 2019 and 2018. 

 
10. TAXATION 

  

a. Taxes Payable 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b. Corporate Income Tax 
 

A reconciliation between loss before income tax, as shown in the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income and estimated tax loss in 2019 and 2018 is as follows: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

For  the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company was in fiscal loss position, hence  
no provision for current income tax was recognized. 

 

Income tax is reconciled between loss before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rate, as follow: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
c. Deferred Tax Assets 

 

The details of deferred tax assets with applicable tax rate at 25% is as follows: 
 

  2019  

   
Balances as of  
April 1, 2018 

 Deferred 
income  

tax benefit 

 Charged to 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income Tax 

Benefit 

 Effect of 
changes in 

foreign 
exchange 
difference 

 Balance as 
of March 
31, 2019 

 

Employee benefit  20,820  13,856  (4,781)  (615 ) 29,280  

 

   
2019 

 
2018 

Income taxes: 
    

 
Article 21 

  
1,460 

 
1,376 

Article 23 
  

3,713 
 

871 

Total 
  

5,173 
 

2,247 

   
2019 

 
2018 

Loss before income tax 
  

(523,931 ) (229,595) 
Permanent differences: 

  
   

Non-deductible expenses 
  

105,933  79,710 
Temporary differences 

  
   

Employee benefit 
  

55,422  9,232 

Estimated tax loss for the year 
  

(362,576 ) (140,653 ) 
 Accumulated fiscal loss at the 
beginning of the year 

  
(971,126 ) (830,473 ) 

Adjustment    58,814  -  
Accumulated fiscal loss at the end of the 
year 

  
(1,274,888 ) (971,126 ) 

   
2019 

 
2018 

Loss before income tax 
  

(523,931 ) (229,595 ) 
Tax calculated at applicable tax rate 

  
130,983  57,398 

Tax effects on permanent differences 
  

(26,483 ) (19,927 ) 
Unrecognized deferred tax assets 

  
(90,644 ) (35,163) 

Deferred income tax benefit 
  

13,856 
 

2,308 
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10. TAXATION (continued) 
 

c. Deferred Tax Assets (continued) 
 

  2018  

   
Balances as of  
April 1, 2017 

 Deferred 
income  

tax benefit 

 Charged to 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income Tax 

Benefit 

 Effect of 
changes in 

foreign 
exchange 
difference 

 Balance as 
of March 
31, 2018 

 

Employee benefit  18,248  2,308  918  (654 ) 20,820  

 
Deferred tax asset relating to tax losses was not recognized as management believes that it is 
not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Company can utilize the 
benefits. 

  
 

11. TRADE PAYABLES 
 

   2019  2018 
Related party (Note 23)      
      Shriram Bioseed Genetics    1,160,154  1,281,233 
Third parties      

Grower   19,250  - 
PT Asian Hybrid Seed Technologies   15,626  - 
PT Surya Plastindo   4,088  - 
PT Forum Agro Sukses Timur   2,461  - 
KAP Johannes Juara & Rekan   1,699  - 
PT Prismas Jamintara   -  16,936 
Others (each below US$ 1,053)   1,669  - 

Total   1,204,947  1,298,169 
 
 

12. OTHER PAYABLE – RELATED PARTY 
 

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, this account represents interest payable to Bioseed Holdings Pte, 
Ltd., a related party, amounting to US$ 256,101 and US$ 266,101, respectively. 

 
 

13. ADVANCE PAYMENT – RELATED PARTY 
 

As of March 31, 2019, this account represents advance payment from PT Shriram Seed Indonesia, a 
related party, amounting to US$ 1,029,618. 
 

 

14. ACCRUED EXPENSES 
 

  
2019   2018 

Outsourcing  22,309  - 
Freight  6,994  - 
Salary  4,051  - 
Professional fees  3,780  5,485 
Treating cost 

 
843 

 
6,681 

Rental  -  4,577 
Others (each below US$ 600) 

 
11,601 

 
4,230 

Total 
 

49,578 
 

20,973 
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15. CONSUMER FINANCING PAYABLES 
 

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has consumer financing agreements with  
PT Maybank Finance Center, third party, to finance acquisitions of vehicles. The loans bear annual 
effective interest rate ranging 9.21% and will mature in 4 (four) years from the inception date of the 
respective loans. This facility is guaranteed by those respective vehicles. 
 
The future minimum payment of this consumer financing is as follow: 

 
       2019 2018 
            

 Minimum lease payment 
  Not later than 1 year    4,408  4,561 
  Later than 1 year and no later       

   than 5 years     1,835  6,459 

            
 

 Total        6,243  11,020 
            

 Less current portion    4,408  4,561 
            

 

 Long term portion    1,835  6,459 
             

 
 

16. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION  
 

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company’s accrued post-employment benefit obligation based 
on the actuarial calculation prepared by PT Dayamandiri Dharmakonsilindo, an independent actuary 
as stated in its report dated April 1, 2019 and March 31, 2018, with the following main assumption: 
 

  
2019   2018 

Normal retirement age 
 

55 years 
 

55 years 
Salary increase rate 

 
8% per year 

 
8% per year 

Discount rate 
 

8.15% per year 
 

7.15% per year 
  

Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in respect of 
the defined benefit plan are as follows: 

 

  
2019   2018 

     

Expense recognized in profit or loss:     

Current service cost 
 

21,203 
 

17,381 
Interest cost 

 
5,684 

 
4,486 

Liability due to recognize of past service  28,535  - 
Defined benefit costs recognized in 

profit or loss 
 

55,422 
 

21,867 
Remeasurements recognized in other 

comprehensive income:     
Actuarial gains arising from experience 

adjustments  (11,793 ) - 
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16. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (continued) 
 

  
2019   2018 

     

Actuarial losses (gains) arising from 
changes in financial assumption  (7,330 ) 3,672 

  
 
 

 

Defined benefit costs recognized in 
other comprehensive income 

 
(19,123 ) 3,672 

Total 
 

36,299 
 

25,539 
 

The movements of the estimated for post employment benefits liabilities are as follows: 
 

  
2019   2018 

Beginning balance  
 

83,278  72,992 
Effect of changes in foreign exchange 
difference 

 
(2,457 ) (2,618 ) 

Current service cost  
 

21,203  17,381 
Interest cost  5,684  4,486 
Liability due to recognize of past service  28,535  - 
Adjustment of the profit or loss  -  (12,635 ) 
Remeasurements recognized in other 
comprehensive income: 

 
    

Actuarial gains arising from 
experience adjustments  (11,793 ) -  

Actuarial losses (gains) arising from 
changes in financial assumption  (7,330 ) 3,672  

Ending balance of defined benefit 
obligation  117,120  83,278  

     

 
 
17. SHARE CAPITAL 

 

The composition of shareholders as of March 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows: 
 

 

Number 
 of issued and  

fully paid 
shares 

 Percentage of 
ownership 

 

Total 

 

Brigitta Hadianto Imam Rahayoe 152,500  51%  152,500  
Bioseeds Holdings Pte. Ltd 147,500  49%  147,500  

Total 300,000  100%  300,000  
 

Capital Management 
 
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern whilst seeking to maximize benefits to shareholders and other stakeholders. 

 
The Company actively and regularly reviews and  manages its capital structure to ensure optimal 
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital efficiency of the 
Company, prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected capital 
expenditures and projected strategic investment opportunities. In order to maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 
 

The computation of gearing ratio are  as follows: 
 

  
2019   2018 

Trade payables 
 

1,204,947 
 

1,298,169 
Other payables 

 
256,101 

 
266,101 

Accrued expenses 
 

49,578 
 

20,973 
  

 
 

 

Total 
 

1,510,626 
 

1,585,243 

Less cash in bank 
 

105,160 
 

90,060 
  

 
 

 

Net debt 
 

1,405,466  1,495,183  
  

   

Capital deficiency 
 

(1,235,932 ) (761,165 ) 
  

 
 

 

Gearing ratio 
 

(1.14 ) (1,96 ) 
 
 

18. SALES 
 

In 2019 and 2018, this account represents sales of seeds to PT Shriram Seed Indonesia, related 
party (Note 23) amounted to US$ 959,339 and US$ 2,288,588, respectively. 

  
 
19. COST OF GOODS SOLD 
 

In 2019 and 2018, this account represents production and processing expenses amounting to  
US$ 633,154 and US$ 1,756,774, respectively. 

 
 
20. RESEARCH EXPENSES  

 

  
2019   2018 

Travelling 
 

24,515 
 

2,196 

Product Registration  14,459  - 

Outsourcing employee  7,460  - 

Trial and demo 
 

6,552 
 

25,273 

Farm Rent  3,416  - 

Others 
 

387 
 

- 

Total 
 

56,789 
 

27,469 
 

21. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
 

 
 2019   2018 

Salaries and allowances  212,112 
 

227,069 
Outsourcing employee  212,030  132,344  
Employee benefit (Note 16)   55,422  21,867  
Professional  fee  39,573  45,935  
Rental  27,289  38,510 
Travelling  19,395  39,650  
Supplies  6,320  -  
Entertainment  5,702  -  
Repair and maintenance  4,766  -  
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21. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (continued) 
 

  
2019   2018 

Insurance 
 

4,194  1,795  
Depreciation of fixed assets (Note 9)  4,163  4,484  
Telephone, internet and fax  3,469  -  
Utilities  2,743  -  
Others (each below US$ 3,479) 

 
20,381  3,934  

Total 
 

617,559  515,588 
 
 
22. OTHER EXPENSES - NET  

 

  
2019   2018 

Write off inventories (Notes 7) 
 

50,634 
 

127,861 

Loss on foreign exchange  49,886  51,311 

Others (each below US$ 3,479) 
 

16,431 
 

8,747 

Total 
 

116,951 
 

187,919 
 
 
23. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
  

 Transactions and balances with related parties are as follows: 
 

  
2019   2018 

Trade receivable      
PT Shriram Seed Indonesia (Note 5)  -  381,462  

      

Percentage to total assets  -  41%  
      

Interest receivable      
PT Shriram Seed Indonesia (Note 6)  65,947  65,947  

      

Percentage to total assets  5%  7% 
     

Trade payable     
Shriram Bioseed Genetics (Note 11)  1,160,154  1,281,233 

     

Percentage to total liabilities  43%  76% 
     

Interest payable      
Bioseed Holdings Pte, Ltd (Note 12)  256,101  266,101  

      

Percentage to total liabilities  9.6%  15.82%  
      

Advance payment      
PT Shriram Seed Indonesia (Note 13)  1,029,618  -  
      

Percentage to total liabilities  38.6%  -  
      
Finance cost      

Shriram Bioseed Genetics  58,817  30,433  
      

Sales      
PT Shriram Seed Indonesia (Note 18)  959,339  2,288,588  
      

Percentage to total sales  100%  100%  
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23. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued) 
 

  2019  2018  
Professional fee      

Brigitta Hadianto Imam Rahayoe  12,158  11,830  
      

Percentage to total operating expenses  2%  2%  
      

 
In conducting its business, the Company entered into business and financial transactions with its 
related parties as follows: 
 

Related parties  
Nature of 

Relationships  Nature of Transactions 
PT Shriram Seed Indonesia  Affiliate 

 
 

 Trade receivables, interest 
receivables, advance payment and 
sales   

Bioseed Holdings Pte, Ltd.  Shareholder  Interest payable and finance cost 

Shriram Bioseed Genetics  Affiliate  Trade payables  
Brigitta Hadianto Imam 
Rahayoe Shareholder Professional fee expense 

 Shareholder  Professional fee expense 

 
 

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

Except for refundable deposits and consumer financing payables the management considers that the 
carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the statement of financial 
position approximate their fair values due to short-term maturities of these financial instruments. 

 
For consumer financing payables, their carrying amounts approximate their fair value as the impact of 
discounted cash flow are not significant. 

 
The fair value of refundable deposits are measured at cost since the fair value cannot be reliably 
determined. 
 
The Company has no financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value as at  
March 31, 2019 and 2018. 

 
 
25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The risks arising from financial instruments to which the Company is exposed are financial risks, 
which include credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and foreign exchange risk of financial assets 
and liabilities. 

 

a. Credit Risk   
 

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the normal course of business. The Company’s 
principal financial assets are cash and trade receivables. The Company’s exposure to credit risk 
is primarily attributable to receivables.  

 
To manage the credit risk associated with cash holdings the Company holds cash in various 
financial institutions. 
 
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument 
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its 
operating activities. Customer credit risk is managed by Director subject to the Company’s 
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. 
outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. 
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
 

The table below shows the Company’s maximum exposures related to credit risk as of 
March 31, 2019 and 2018: 
 
    2019     
           

    Past Due But Not Impaired   
           

  Neither past 
due 

   > 3 
months 

    

  Nor impaired  < 3 Months  And 1 year  > 1 year  Total 
           

           

Cash in Bank  105,160  -  -  -  105,160 
Other receivables - 

related party  
 

- 
 

- 
 

65,947 
 

- 
 

65,947 
Other assets  2,469  -  -  -  2,469 
           
           

Total  107,629  -  65,947  -  173,576 
           

 
    2018     
           

    Past Due But Not Impaired   
           

  Neither past 
due 

   > 3 
months 

    

  Nor impaired  < 3 Months  And 1 year  > 1 year  Total 
           

           

Cash in Bank  90,060  -  -  -  90,060 
Trade receivables  

- related party 
 

381,462 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

381,462 
Other receivable - 

related party  
 

65,947 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

65,947 
Other assets  2,539  -  -  -  2,539 
           
           

Total  540,008  -  -  -  540,008 
           

 
b. Interest Rate Risk  
 

Interest rate risk arises from change in the interest rate of shareholder’s loan. The risk associated 
with such loans is not a material exposure as the Company monitors the fluctuation in interest 
rate in the future 
 

c. Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company is unable to meet financial commitments when they 
fall due. The Company maintains sufficient liquidity for its operations by closely monitoring and 
managing its cash flows. Currently the Company has a net cash position and has very low liquidity 
risk. 

 
    2019   
         
         

  Less than    More than   
  1 year  1 - 2 years  2 years  Total 

         

         

Trade payables   1,204,947  -  -  1,204,947 
Accrued 

expenses 
 

49,578 
 

- 
 

- 
 

49,578 
Other payables  256,101  -  -  256,101 
Consumer 

financing payable 
 

4,408 
 

1,835 
 

- 
 

6,243 
         
         

Total  1,515,034  1,835  -  1,516,869 
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
c. Liquidity Risk (continued) 

 
    2018   

         

         

  Less than    More than   
  1 year  1 - 2 years  2 years  Total 

         
         

Trade payables   1,298,169  -  -  1,298,169 
Accrued  

expenses 
 

20,973 
 

- 
 

- 
 

20,973 
Other payables  266,101  -  -  266,101 
Consumer  

financing payable 
 

4,561 
 

4,561 
 

1,898 
 

11,020 
         
         

Total  1,589,804  4,561  1,898  1,596,263 
         

 
d. Foreign Exchange Risk 

 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments 
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchanges rates.  
 
Management manages its foreign currency exchange risk through maintaining adequate cash in 
foreign currency to meet obligations denominated in foreign currencies when due. 

 
 

26. SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS  
 
PT Asian Hybrid Seed Technologies (AHSTI) 
 
 The Company entered into seed processing agreement on October 1, 2018 with AHSTI, third 

party. Based on the agreement, AHSTI undertakes seed tooling processing for the Company 
subject to terms and conditions set forth in agreement as follows: 

 
1. AHSTI will process F1 corn cobs starting from weighing, receiving, drying, shelling, grading, 

treating and packaging of processed F1 seeds. 
2. AHSTI will observe the quality standards set by Balai Pengawasan Sertifikasi Benih as 

follows; Moisture Content Rate of not more than 12% after treatment, germanition Rate of 
90% and physical Purity Rate of 98%. 

3. The Company guarantees a minimum volume of 500 Tons for  fresh corn cobs and 1,000 
tons for shelled dry corn seeds within the term of this contract. 

4. AHSTI shall provide working office for the Company authorized QA representative. 
5. The term of agreement is from February 1, 2017 until March 31, 2019. Up to the reporting 

date, the agreement is on renewal process. Tolling rate per kg, corn cobs and dry corn seeds 
amounted to Rp 3,070,  excluding 10% VAT. 
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26. SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS (continued) 
 

UD Pro Green 
 

 The Company entered into seed processing agreement on July 1, 2018 with UD Pro Green 
(third party). Based on the agreement, UD Pro Green undertakes seed tooling processing for 
the Company subject to terms and conditions set forth in agreement is as of: 
1. UD Pro Green will process F1 corn cobs starting from weighing, receiving, drying, shelling, 

grading, treating and packaging of processed F1 seeds. 
2. UD Pro Green and The Company will observe the quality standards set by Balai 

Pengawasan Sertifikasi Benih As follows; Moisture Content Rate of not more than 12% after 
treatment, germanition Rate of 90% and physical Purity Rate of 98%. 

3. UD Pro Green shall provide working office for the Company authorized QA representative. 
4. The term of agreement is from July 1, 2018 until June 30, 2019. Tolling rate per kg, corn 

cobs amounted Rp 2,200,  and grain seeds Rp 800 excluding 10% VAT. 
 

PT Shriram Seed Indonesia 
 

 Based on  Sale and Purchase of Hybrid Corn Seed Supply Agreement dated April 1, 2015. The 
Company shall produce and sell 750 metric tons of Hybrid Corn B89 to PT Shriram Seed 
Indonesia (the buyer, a related party) for the period of April 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016, where 
the purchase price of the Hybrid Corn B89 is US$ 2.25 / Rp 30,000 per kilogram inclusive of the 
Value Added Taxes (VAT), expenses warehousing and delivery charges. The agreement was 
renewed for another 1 year, from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017.  

 

 Based on Sale and Purchase of Hybrid Corn Seed Supply Agreement dated April 1, 2016.  
The Company shall produce and sell 650 metric tons of Hybrid Corn B89 to PT Shriram Seed 
Indonesia (the buyer, a related party) for the period April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017, where the 
purchase price of the Hybrid Corn B89 is Rp 30,000 per kilogram inclusive of the Value Added 
Taxes (VAT), expenses warehousing and delivery charges. As per initial estimates of Buyer, the 
Seller also test produce and Import Hybrid Corn B70 and Hybrid Corn B54 for the Buyer for the 
period of April1, 2017 - March 31, 2017, where the purchase price of the Hybrid Corn B70 / B54 
is Rp 30,000 per kilogram inclusive of the Value Added Taxes (VAT), expenses, warehousing 
and delivery charges. 

 

 Based on Amendment of Sale and Purchase of Hybrid Corn Seed Supply Agreement dated 
March 30, 2017. The parties agreed to revise selling price, where the purchase price of the 
Hybrid Corn B89 is Rp 38,522 per kilogram, Hybrid Corn B70 is Rp 30,047 per kilogram and 
Hybrid Corn B54 is Rp 27,524 per kilogram. 

 

 Based on Sale and Purchase of Hybrid Corn Seed Supply Agreement dated April 1, 2018.  
The Company shall produce and sell 750 metric tons of Hybrid Corn B89 to PT Shriram Seed 
Indonesia (the buyer, a related party) for the period of April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019, where 
the purchase price of the Hybrid Corn B89 is Rp 30,000 per kilogram inclusive of the Value 
Added Taxes (VAT), expenses warehousing and delivery charges. As per initial estimates of 
Buyer, the Seller also test produce and Import Hybrid Corn B70 and Hybrid Corn B54 for the 
Buyer for the period April 1, 2018 - March 31, 2019. Up to the reporting date, the agreement is 
on renewal process where the purchase price of the Hybrid Corn B70 / B54 is Rp 30,000 per 
kilogram inclusive of the Value Added Taxes (VAT), expenses, warehousing and delivery 
charges. 

 
27. GOING CONCERN 
 

The Company incurred recurring losses from its operation which resulted to a comprehensive loss 
of US$ 474,767 during the year ended March 31, 2019, and capital deficiency amounting to  
US$ 1,235,932 as of March 31, 2019. As of that date, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its 
total assets by US$ Rp 1,313,893. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty 
that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
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27. GOING CONCERN (continued) 
 

 To manage the above condition, the Company’s management plan to implement the following 
actions: 

 

 Launch new hybrid (B59) 
 Production efficiency with new hybrids with lower COGS and new tolling facilities to improve 

recovery which intern lower COGS and improve quality  
 

These financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this 
uncertainty. 

 
 
28. SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
 

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activity were as follows: 
 

 2019 
 Beginning Balance  Cash flows-net  Ending Balance 

      

Consumer financing payable 11,020  (4,777)  6,243 
 
 
29. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

 
Based on Amendment of seed processing agreement with AHSTI dated April 30, 2019. The parties 
agreed to extend the period of the agreement, and there’s no change on the subject matter of the 
agreement.  

 
 
30. RECLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS 

 
Certain accounts in the 2018 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the 
presentation of the 2019 financial statements, as follows: 
 

 
As Previously Reported 

  
As Reclassified 

  
Amount 

  
Reason of 

reclassification 
       

2018     

Other receivables  Advances and prepaid  
expenses  6,098  To adjust based on  

the nature of transaction 

Other payables  Accrued expenses  4,032  To adjust based on  
the nature of transaction 

General and administrative  
Expenses  Research expenses  42,924  To adjust based on  

the nature of transaction 

Other expenses - net  Finance cost  12,491  To adjust based on  
the nature of transaction 

       

 
 
31. ISSUANCE OF AMENDMENTS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO PSAK, NEW PSAK AND ISAK 
 

DSAK-IAI has issued the following new and amendments and improvements to PSAK, new PSAK 
and ISAK which will be applicable to the financial statements with annual periods beginning on or 
after: 
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31. ISSUANCE OF AMENDMENTS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO PSAK, NEW PSAK AND ISAK 
(continued) 

 

1) January 1, 2019 
 

 ISAK No. 33: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration  
 ISAK No. 34: Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments 
 Amendment to PSAK No. 24: Employee Benefits, on Curtailment or Settlement Program 
 PSAK No. 22: Business Combination (Improvement 2018) 
 PSAK No. 26: Borrowing Costs (Improvement 2018) 
 PSAK No. 46: Income Taxes (Improvement 2018) 
 PSAK No. 66:Joint Arrangements (Improvement 2018) 

 
2) January 1, 2020 

 

 Amendments to PSAK No. 15: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Long-term 
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures  

 Amendments to PSAK No. 62: Applying PSAK 71: Financial Instruments with PSAK 62: 
Insurance Contract  

 Amendments to PSAK No. 71: Financial Instruments, on Prepayment Features with Negative 
Compensation 

 PSAK No. 71: Financial Instruments 
 PSAK No. 72: Revenue from Contract with Customers 
 PSAK No. 73: Lease 

 
The Company is still evaluating the effects of those amendments and improvements to PSAK, new 
PSAK and ISAK and has not yet determined the related effects on the financial statements. 
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 Notes  2019  2018  
ASSETS       

       
CURRENT ASSETS       
Cash on hand and in bank 4,24,25  284,329  1,186,309  
Trade receivables - third parties 5,24,25  628,326  584,686  
Inventories 6  49,398  -  
Advances and prepaid expenses  7,23  1,098,095  62,681  
Total Current Assets   2,060,148  1,833,676  
 
 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS       
Fixed assets - net 8  26,817  29,311  
Deferred tax assets 10c  111,228  75,173  
Other assets 9,24,25  7,525         15,167  
Total Non-current Assets   145,570  119,651  
 
TOTAL ASSETS   2,205,718  1,953,327  
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 Notes  2019  2018  
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  
      (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)       
 
CURRENT LIABILITIES       
Trade payables - related parties 11,23,24,25  -  385,357  

Other payables 12,24,25      

Related parties 23  504,661  416,977  

Third parties   5,556  21,147  

Shareholder’s loans 13,23,24,25  2,200,000  900,000  

Accrued expenses 14,24,25  55,348  8,163  
Taxes payable 10a  5,676  12,886  
Current portion of:       

Consumer financing payables 15,24,25  4,300  6,357  

Total Current Liabilities   2,775,541  1,750,887  
 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES       
Long-term portion of: 15,24,25      

Consumer financing payables   -  1,169  
Post-employment benefit obligation 16  266,092  115,120  
Total Non-current Liabilities   266,092  116,289  
 
TOTAL LIABILITIES   3,041,633  

                                    
1,867,176  

       
EQUITY (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)       
Share capital, US$ 1 par value per share       

Authorized, issued and       
fully paid - 5,350,000 shares 17  5,350,000  5,350,000  

Effect of changes in foreign        
exchange difference   443,697  454,905  

Deficits   (6,629,612)  (5,718,753 ) 
 
TOTAL EQUITY  

(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)    (835,915)  86,152  
 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY   2,205,718  1,953,328  
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 Notes  2019  2018  

SALES 18  1,133,874  2,742,718  
       
COST OF SALES 19,23  (906,858 ) (2,489,775 ) 
       
GROSS PROFIT   227,016  252,943  
       

Selling expenses 20  (102,585 ) (168,023 ) 
General and administrative expenses 21,23  (942,513 ) (824,190 ) 
Other expenses - net 22  (43,856 ) (642,096 ) 

OPERATING LOSS   (861,938 ) (1,381,366 ) 
       

Finance cost 23  (110,321 ) (93,894 ) 
       

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX   (972,259 ) (1,475,260 ) 
       
DEFERRED INCOME 

TAX BENEFIT (EXPENSE) 10b  44,018  (101,861 ) 

NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR   (928,241 ) (1,577,121 ) 
       

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE  
INCOME (LOSS)       

Item that will be reclassified to  
profit or loss       

Effect of changes in foreign  
exchange difference   (11,208 ) (16,069 ) 

Item that will not be reclassified to  
profit or loss       

Remeasurements of post- 
employment benefits 16  23,176  

                            
(4,719 ) 

Related income tax 10c  (5,794 ) 1,180  
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR   6,174  (19,608 ) 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS  

FOR THE YEAR   (922,067 ) (1,596,729 ) 
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Share 
Capital  

Effect of 
Changes in 

Foreign 
Exchange 
Difference  Deficits  

Total 
Equity 

(Capital 
Deficiency) 

 

 
Balance as of  

April 1, 2017 

 

5,350,000  470,974  (4,138,093 ) 1,682,881  

Net loss for the year  
-  -  (1,577,121 ) (1,577,121 ) 

Other comprehensive loss  -  (16,069 ) (3,539  ) (19,608 ) 
          
          
Balance as of 

March 31, 2018 
 

5,350,000  454,905  (5,718,753 ) 86,152  
          
Net loss for the year  -  -  (928,241 ) (928,241 ) 
Other comprehensive loss   -  (11,208 ) 17,382  6,174  
          
          
Balance as of 

March 31, 2019 
 

5,350,000  443,697  (6,629,612 ) (835,915 ) 
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        2019    2018   
             
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES        
Loss before income tax     (972,259 )  (1,475,260) 
Adjustments for: 
 Effect of changes in     
  foreign exchange difference    (10,439 )  (15,063) 

Finance cost    110,321   93,894  
Employee benefit expenses    205,275   34,598

 Adjustment of employee benefit    (28,674 )  11,719 
 Depreciation of fixed assets    7,616   6,227 
 Loss on disposal assets    -   2 
           
Operating loss before changes in working capital    (688,160 )  (1,343,883) 
Changes in working capital:         
 Trade receivables - third parties    (43,640 )  1,053,681 
 Other receivables    -    22,820 
 Advances and prepaid expenses    (1,035,414 )  723,148 
 Inventories    (49,398 )  643,107 
 Other assets    7,642   155  
 Trade payables    (385,357 )  (75,599) 
 Other payables    72,093   57,478  
 Accrued expenses    47,185   (63,000)  
 Taxes payable    (7,210 )  7,543 
           
Cash generated from (used in) operation    (2,082,259 )  1,025,450 
 Finance cost paid    (110,321 )  (93,894) 
           
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities   (2,192,580 )  931,556 
           
CASH FLOWS FOR INVESTING ACTIVITY  
Acquisition of fixed assets (Note 8)    (6,174 )  (1,469) 
           
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
Proceeds from shareholder’s loans    1,300,000   -  
Payment of consumer financing payables    (3,226 )  (8,123) 
           
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing    

Activities     1,296,774   (8,123) 
           
       

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ON HAND 
 AND IN BANK    (901,980 )  921,964 
CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AT  
 THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR    1,186,309   264,345 
           
CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AT END OF THE YEAR    284,329   1,186,309 
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1. GENERAL 
 

The Company’s Establishment and General Information 
 

PT Shriram Seed Indonesia (“the Company”) was established based on notarial deed of  
Adrian Djuaini S.H., No. 01 dated February 4, 2011. The deed of establishment was approved by 
the Minister of Justice of the Republic of Indonesia in his decision letter  
No. AHU-0014411.AH.01.09.Tahun 2011 dated February 22, 2011. 

 
The Company’s Articles of Association have been amended several times, the latest amendment 
was based on Deed No. 1 of Utiek R. Abdurachman, S.H., M.LI., M.Kn., dated November 3, 2015 
concerning the amandement of the articles of association. This amendment was received and 
recorded in the Minister of Law and Human Rights of the Republic of Indonesia through his letter  
No. AHU-0946728.AH.01.02.Year 2015 dated November 26, 2015. 
 
In accordance with article 3 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the scope of its activities is 
engaged in seed’s import and distribution. The Company started its commercial operation on 
April 1, 2012.  The Company is domiciled in Mayapada Tower 1, 7th Floor Suite 06E Jendral 
Sudirman Street Kav 28, Karet Setiabudi, South Jakarta.  
 
Immediate parent Company is Bioseeds Holdings Pte. Ltd., incorporated and domiciled in 
Singapore. 
 
The Board of Commissioners and Director, and Employees 
 
The members of the Boards of Commissioners and Director of the Company as of March 31, 2019 
and 2018 are as follows:      

           

President Commissioner : Jitender Kumar Jain 
Commissioner                 : Paresh Kumar Verma 
Commissioner                 : Parveen Kumar Aggarwal 
 

President Director           : Joseph Abraham Anand 
 

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had a total of 9 and 11 permanent employees 
(unaudited), respectively. 
 
Issuance of Financial Statements 

 
The financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Director of the Company, who is 
responsible for the preparation and completion of financial statements, on April 9, 2019. 

 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 

Compliance with Financial Accounting Standards (SAK) 
  
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indonesian SAK which include, the 
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (PSAK) and Interpretation of Financial Accounting 
Standards (ISAK) issued by Financial Accounting Standards Board of the Indonesian Institute of 
Accountant (DSAK-IAI). 
 

Basis of Measurement in Preparation of Financial Statements  
 

The financial statements have been prepared based on the going-concern assumption and basis of 
the historical cost, except for certain accounts which are measured on the basis described in the 
related accounting policies. 
 

The financial statements also have been prepared based on the accrual basis, except for the 
statement of cash flows, which are prepared under the cash basis. The statement of cash flows has 
been prepared based on the indirect method by classifying cash flows on the basis of operating, 
investing and financing activities. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Basis of Measurement in Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)  
 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with 
those adopted in the preparation of the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2019, except 
for the adoption of several amendments and improvements to PSAK effective April 1, 2018 as 
disclosed in this note. 
 

Unless otherwise stated, all figures presented in the financial statements are stated in United States 
(US) Dollar. The financial statements of the Company in Indonesian Rupiah have been translated into 
US Dollar using the following procedures: 
 

(a) Monetary assets and liabilities are translated using closing rate. 
(b) Equity are translated using exchange rates at the date of transactions. 
(c) Income and expenses are translated using exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 
(d) All resulting differences are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indonesian SAK requires management to 
make judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense.  Although these estimates are based on 
management’s best knowledge and judgment of current events and actions, actual results may 
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, 
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed 
in Note 3 to the financial statements. 
 

Adoption of Amendments to PSAK  
 

The Company has adopted several amendments to PSAK that are mandatory for application effective 
April 1, 2018. The adoption of the following amendments to PSAK did not result in substantial changes 
to the Company’s accounting policies and had no material effect on the amounts reported for the 
current or prior financial years: 

 

 Amendments to PSAK 2: Statement of Cash Flows, on Disclosure Initiative 
 Amendments to PSAK 46: Income Taxes, on Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized 

Losses 
 

Foreign Currencies Transactions and Balances 
 

a.  Functional and Presentation Currency 
 

 The functional currency of the Company is Indonesian Rupiah (Rupiah).  
 

 The presentation currency used in the preparation of the financial statements is the United States 
Dollar (USD).  At the end of each reporting period, the assets and liabilities of the Company are 
translated into the presentation currency at the spot rate which is the exchange rate prevailing 
at the end of the reporting period and their profit or loss are translated at the average rate during 
the period.  The resulting differences arising from translations of the financial statements of the 
Company are included in other comprehensive income and presented as part of “The effect of 
Changes in Foreign Exchange Difference” in the statements of changes in equity. 

 

b.  Transactions and Balances 
 

 Foreign currencies transactions are translated in to respective functional currency of the 
Company using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 

 

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of 
exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary items that are 
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange 
differences arising on the settlement of monetary items and on retranslation of monetary items 
are included in the profit or loss. As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the exchange rate used based 
on rate by management was Rp 14,241 and Rp 13,764, respectively. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Transactions with Related Parties 
 
In accordance with PSAK No. 7, “Related Party Disclosures”, parties are considered to be related if 
one party has the ability to control (by way of ownership, directly or indirectly) or exercise significant 
influence (by way of participation in the financial and operating policies) over the other party in making 
financial and operating decisions. 
 
All significant transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements 

 
Financial Instruments 
 
Financial Assets 
 
All financial assets are recognized and derecognized on trade date where the purchase or sale of 
a financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the 
timeframe established by the marketplace concerned. 
 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: (i) financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss, (ii) loans and receivables, (iii) held to maturity investment and (iv) 
available for sale financial assets. 

 
As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company only had financial assets classified as loans and 
receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current-assets for maturities 
shorter than twelve months; otherwise they are classified as non-current asset. The Company’s 
loans and receivables comprised of cash on hand and in bank, trade receivables - third parties and 
other assets in the statement of financial position. 
 
Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus any transaction costs and 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any 
impairment. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets 
have ceased to exist or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
The Company classifies its financial liabilities into two categories (i) at fair value through profit or 
loss and (ii) financial liabilities measured at amortized cost. 

 
As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company only had financial liabilities measured at amortized 
cost that comprised of trade payables - related parties, shareholder’s loans, other payables, accrued 
expenses,and consumer financing payables. After the initial recognition which is at fair value plus 
transaction costs, the Company measures all financial liabilities at amortized cost using effective 
interest rate method.  Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged or cancelled or expired. 
 
Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities 
  
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of 
financial position when, and only when, 1) the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to 
offset the recognized amounts and 2) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Impairment of Financial Assets 
 
At each statement of financial position date, management assesses whether there is any objective 
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.  A financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is an 
objective evidence of impairment.  
 
For financial asset measured at amortized cost, loss is measured as the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at original 
effective interest rate of the financial assets.  The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced 
either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognized in 
profit or loss. 
 
Management initially assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for 
financial assets that are individually significant. If the Company determines that no objectives 
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset whether significant or not, 
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and 
collectively assesses them for impairment. 

 
Cash on Hand and in Banks 
 
Cash on hand and in banks represent cash on hand and cash in banks neither used as collateral 
nor restricted. 

  
Inventories 
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost of inventories is carried on 
the average cost method and includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories and 
bringing them to their present location and condition. Allowance for decline in value of inventories, 
which is provided to reduce the carrying value of inventories to their net realizable value, is 
determined based on a review of the condition of the individual inventory items at the end of the 
year. 
 
Prepaid Expenses 

 
Prepaid expenses are amortized over their beneficial periods using the straight-line method.  
 

 Fixed Asets 
 

Fixed assets are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an asset comprises its purchases price and 
any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended 
use. Subsequent to initial recognition, fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

 
Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Company and the cost of the item can be reliably measured. All other repairs and maintenance 
are charged to profit or loss. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized during the 
financial year in which they are incurred. 

 
Depreciation of fixed assets is computed using the straight-line method, based upon the estimated 
useful lives of the related fixed assets, as follows: 

 
          Years 
   
 Vehicles        8 
 Furniture and fixtures      4  
 Telephone installation      4  
 Office equipment        4 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

 Fixed Assets (continued) 
 

The estimated useful life, residual value, and depreciation method of fixed assets are reviewed at 
each financial year end with the effect of any changes in accounting estimate accounted for on a 
prospective basis. 

 
An item of fixed asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset, calculated 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is 
recognized in statement of profit or loss in the year the item it is derecognized.  
 
Impairment of Non-financial Assets 
 
Non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation but tested 
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they 
might be impaired. Non-financial assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped 
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). 
Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment 
at each reporting date. 

 
Leases 
 
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if       the 
Company determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an 
agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made 
based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the 
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease. 
 
Assets acquired under finance leases 
 
Leases of fixed assets where the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the inception of the 
lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve 
a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of 
finance charges, are included in obligations under finance leases. The interest element of the finance 
cost is taken to profit or loss over the leased period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 

 

Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the assets except if there 
is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, in 
which case the leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the 
assets and the lease term. 
 

Post-employment Benefit Obligation 
 

The Company provides defined post-employment benefits to their employees in accordance with 
Indonesian Labour Law No. 13/2003.  
 

The Company’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated as the present value 
of the post-employment benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The post-employment 
benefit obligation is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method which is usually dependent 
on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Post-employment Benefit Obligation (continued) 
 
Remeasurements  of  post-employment  benefit  obligation,  comprise  of  a) actuarial gains and 
losses, b) the return of plan assets, excluding interest, and c) the effect of asset ceiling, excluding 
interest, are recognized immediately in the other comprehensive income in the period in which they 
occur. Remeasurements  are  not  reclassified  to  profit  or  loss  in  the  subsequent periods. 

 
The Company’s recognizes the (1) service costs, comprising of current service cost, past-service 
cost, and any gain or loss on settlement, and (2) net interest expense immediately in profit or loss. 

 

Revenue and Expense Recognition 
 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.  Revenue is recognized when the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and there is actual delivery 
made and the same is accepted by the customer. 
 

Expenses are recognized when these are incurred (accrual basis). 
  

Income Tax 
       

 Income tax expenses represent the sum of the current tax and deferred tax. 
 

Tax is recognized as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, except to the 
extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is recognized outside profit or loss. Tax 
that relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in other 
comprehensive income and tax that relates to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in 
equity. 
 

i. Current Tax 
 

The current tax payable is based on taxable income for the year. Taxable profit differs  from  profit  
as  reported  in  the  respective  profit  or  loss  and other comprehensive income of  the companies 
in the Company because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in 
other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable nor deductible. The respective current 
tax liability of each entity in the Company is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
 

Management periodically evaluates the amount reported in the Annual Tax Return (SPT) in 
relation to the circumstances in which the applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation 
and, if necessary, the management will calculate the amount of provision that may arise. 

 
ii. Deferred Tax 

 
Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes at the reporting date. 

 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of 
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available against 
which deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilized 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Such deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary differences arises from (a) the initial 
recognition of goodwill; (b) or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is (i) not a business 
combination, and (ii) at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable 
income or loss.   
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Income Tax (continued) 
 

ii.  Deferred Tax (continued) 
 
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or 
part of the benefit of that deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are 
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable 
that future taxable income will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities can be offset if, and only if, (a) there is a legally enforceable right 
to offset the current tax assets and liabilities and (b) the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to 
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

 
3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS 
 

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of sales, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment 
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future years. 

 
Judgments  
 
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognized in the financial statements: 

 
Determination of Functional Currency 
 
Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 
operates. This is the currency that mainly influences the sales price for goods or services, the 
currency of the country whose competitive forces and regulations mainly determined the sales price 
of goods and services, or the currency that mainly influences labor, material and other cost of 
providing the goods and services. When the indicators are mixed, the management made judgment 
to determine the most appropriate functional currency to describe the economic effect of underlying 
transactions, events and conditions of the Company’s operations. 
 
Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
 
The Company determines the classifications of certain assets and liabilities as financial assets and 
financial liabilities by judging if they meet the definition set forth in PSAK No. 55 (Revised 2014).  The 
financial assets and financial liabilities are accounted for in accordance with the Company’s 
accounting policies disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements. 

 
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty  
 
The key assumptions related to the future and other main sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date that have significant risks of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next year are disclosed below.  
 
The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial 
statements were prepared.  
 
 



PT SHRIRAM SEED INDONESIA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As of March 31, 2019 And for the Year Then Ended  
(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise stated) 

 

 

13 
 

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS (continued) 
 
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued) 
 
Existing conditions and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes 
or conditions arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the 
assumptions when they occur. 
 
Impairment of trade receivables 
 
Impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Company 
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to original term of debts. An assessment is made 
at each statement of financial position date of whether there is any indication of impairment or 
whether there is any indication that an impairment loss previously recognized in prior years may no 
longer exist or may have decreased. Where the actual results differ from the amounts that were 
initially assessed, such differences will result in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
trade receivables within the next financial year. The carrying amount of the trade receivables is 
disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements. 
 
Impairment of Inventories 
 
Management reviews aging analysis at each statement of financial position date, and makes 
allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for use 
in production. Management estimates the net realizable value of such finished goods based primarily 
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The carrying amount of the inventories is 
disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements 
 
Useful Lives of Fixed Assets 
 
Fixed asset is depreciated using the straight-line method based on estimated useful lives of 4 to 8 
years, which is the common life expectancy applied in the industry.  Changes in the pattern of usage 
and the level of technological development could impact the economic useful life and residual value 
of fixed assets.  Therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised. The net carrying amount 
of fixed assets at the statement of financial position date is disclosed in Note 8 to the financial 
statements. 

 
 Post-employment Benefit Obligation 
 

The determination of the Company’s post-employment benefit obligation and employee benefits 
expense is dependent on selection of certain assumptions, those assumptions include among others, 
discount rates, future annual salary increase, annual employee turn-over rate, disability rate, 
retirement age and mortality rate. Actual results that differ from the Company’s assumptions are 
accounted in accordance with the policies as mentioned in Note 16 to the financial statements. 

 
Income Taxes 
 
There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain 
during the ordinary course of business. The Company recognizes liability for expected income tax 
based on estimates of whether additional corporate income tax will be due. Where the final tax 
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognized, such 
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such 
determination is made. The Company’s carrying amount of taxes payable and deferred tax assets 
are disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements. 
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4. CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK 
 

        2019            2018 
             
 Cash on hand    23   1,009 
 
 Cash in bank  
  Standard Chartered Bank    
   Rupiah     88,677   1,185,109 
   United States Dollar    195,629   191 
             
 Sub-total    284,306   1,185,300 
             
 Total     284,329   1,186,309 
      

 
  

 
 

 
 
5. TRADE RECEIVABLES - THIRD PARTIES 

 
        2019            2018 
             
  
 Third parties    807,148   774,179 
 Less: provision for impairment    (178,822)  (189,493) 
             
 Total     628,326   584,686 
      

 
  

 
 

 
  The movements of provision for impairment are as follows: 
        2019            2018 
             
 Balance at beginning of year      189,493   633,097 
 Sales for impairment of receivables      -   189,493 
 Effect of changes in foreign exchange difference     (10,671)   - 
 Reversal during the year          -   (633,097) 
             
 Balance at end of year      178,822   189,493 
      

 
  

 
 

 
Management believes that the above provision for impairment is adequate to cover any possible 
losses that may arise from non-collection of accounts. 

 
 
6. INVENTORIES 
 

As of March 31, 2019, this account represents inventory of returned corn from customer, amounting 
to US$ 49,398. 
 
Based on management review, there are write-off corn inventories amounted to US$ 12,525 and 
US$ 389,406 as of March 31, 2019 and 2018 have been charged to other expenses - net (Note 22), 
respectively. 

 
Management believes that carrying amounts of inventories do not exceed their net realizable values, 
therefore the Company did not provide an allowance to adjust the carrying amounts of inventories to 
their net realizable values. 
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7.  ADVANCES AND PREPAID EXPENSES  
   

        2019            2018 
             
 Prepaid Expenses  
 Rental       30,864   28,707 
 School fees      15,276   15,206 
 Profesional fees      12,463                 11,899 
 Insurance      8,010   6,797 
 Others       37   - 
             
 Sub-total      66,650          62,609  
             
 Advances 
 Advance to a PT Shriram Genetics (Note 23)      1,029,618   - 
 Advance to employees      1,827   72 
             
 Sub-total      1,031,445    72 
             
 
 Total       1,098,095   62,681 
      

 
  

 
 

 
 
8. FIXED ASSETS - NET 
 

The details and movements of fixed assets are as follows: 
 

 
 2019 

 
Beginning 
Balance  

 
Additions  

Effect of 
changes in 

foreign 
exchange 
difference 

 

 
Ending 

Balance 
Acquisition Cost        
Vehicles     38,822   4,909  (1,300)  42,431 
Furniture and fixtures 4,489  -  (151)  4,338 
Telephone installation 646   -  (22)  624 
Office equipment 8,722   1,265  (293)  9,694 

Total Acquisition Cost 52,679   6,174  (1,766)  57,087 
        

Accumulated Depreciation        
Vehicles 11,728   6,725  (332)  18,121 
Furniture and fixtures 4,476   -  (138)  4,338 
Telephone installation 646   -  (22)  624 
Office equipment 6,518   891  (222)  7,187 
 
Total Accumulated Depreciation 23,368  7,616  (714)  30,270 
 
Net Book Value 29,311     

 
 26,817 
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8.  FIXED ASSETS - NET (continued) 
 

 2018 

 
Beginning 
Balance  

 
Additions  Deduction 

 Effect of 
changes 
in foreign 
exchange 
difference 

 

 
Ending 

Balance 
Acquisition Cost          
Furniture and fixtures 4,636  -  -              (147 ) 4,489  
Telephone installation 667  -  -                (21 ) 646  
Office equipment 7,601  1,469                 107               (241 ) 8,722   
Vehicles 40,092  -  -           (1,270 )       38,822  

Total Acquisition Cost 52,996  1,469   107 

 

(1,679 ) 52,679  
          

Accumulated  
Depreciation      

 
   

Furniture and fixtures 4,623  12   -              (159 ) 4,476  
Telephone installation 667  -   -                (21 ) 646  
Office equipment 5,572  1,245   105              (194 ) 6,518  
Vehicles 7,100  4,970   -              (342 ) 11,728  
 
Total Accumulated 

Depreciation 17,962  
            

6,227   105 

 

(714 ) 23,368 
 
Net Book Value 35,034     

  
 29,311  

          
 

For the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, depreciation expenses of US$ 7,616 and US$ 6,227, 
respectively, have been charged to general and administrative expenses (Note 21). 

 
The computations of gain (loss) on disposal fixed assets are as follows: 

 

 
Based on management’s review, there are no events or changes in circumstances which may 
indicate impairment of fixed assets as of March 31, 2019 and 2018. 

 
9.  OTHER ASSETS          

  
As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, this account represent rental deposit for building amounted to  
US$ 7,525 and US$ 15,167, respectively. 

 
10.  TAXATION    
 
 a. Taxes payable 
        2019            2018 
             
  Income tax: 
   Article 4 (2)      18   132 
   Article 21      5,284   12,412 
   Article 23      374   342 
             
  Total      5,676   12,886 
      

 
  

 
 

    2018 
Proceeds from sale    -  
Net book value    2  

Loss on disposal fixed assets     (2 ) 
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10. TAXATION (continued) 
 

b. Corporate income tax 
 

A reconciliation between loss before income tax, as shown in profit or loss and estimated taxable 
loss for the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows: 

 

        2019            2018 
             
  Loss before income tax      (972,259)   (1,475,260) 
  Permanent differences:          
   Non-deductible expenses      236,100   308,882 
   

  Temporary differences:          
   Employee benefits       176,601   46,317 
   Provision for impairment of receivable      -   189,493 
   Depreciation of fixed assets      -                   431     
             
  Estimated tax loss for the year      (559,558)  (930,137) 
  Accumulated fiscal loss at beginning of the year     (4,314,245)  (3,675,111) 
  Adjustment      244,747   291,004 
             
  Accumulated tax loss at the ending of the year     (4,629,056)  (4,314,244) 
      

 
  

 
 

 

For the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company was in fiscal loss position, hence 
no provision for current income tax was recognized. 

 

Income tax is reconciled between loss before income tax multiplied by the applicable tax rate, 
as follows: 
      

        2019            2018 
             
  Loss before income tax      (972,259)  (1,475,260) 
             
  Tax calculate at applicable tax rate      243,065   368,815 
  Tax effect on permanent differences      (59,025)  (77,221) 
  Unrecognized deferred tax asset      (140,022)  (393,455) 
             
  Deferred income tax benefit (expense)      44,018   (101,861) 
      

 
  

 
 

  

c. Deferred tax assets 
 

The calculation of deferred assets with applicable tax rate at 25% is as follows: 
 

  2019 

  

Balances 
as of 

April 1, 
2018  

Deferred 
income  

tax 
benefit  

Other 
comprehensive 

income  

Effect of 
changes in 

foreign 
exchange 
difference  

 
 

Adjustment 
due to 

reversal 

 

Balance as 
of March 31, 

2019 
             
Provision for 

impairment 
 

46,251  -  -  (1,546)  - 
 

44,705 
Employment 

benefit 
 

28,780  44,150  (5,794)  (613)  - 
 

66,523 
Depreciation 

of fixed 
assets 

 

142  -  -  (10)  (132)  - 
 

Deferred tax 
assets  75,173  44,150  (5,794)  (2,169)  (132) 

 

111,228 
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10. TAXATION (continued) 
 

c. Deferred tax assets (continued) 
 

  2018 

  

Balances 
as of 

April 1, 
2017  

Deferred 
income  

tax 
benefit  

Other 
comprehensive 

income  

Effect of 
changes in 

foreign 
exchange 
difference  

 
 

Adjustment 
due to 

reversal 

 

Balance as 
of March 31, 

2018 
             
Provision for 

impairment 
 

162,261  47,373  -  (1,122 ) 
 

(162,261) 
 

46,251 
Employment 

benefit 
 

16,828  11,579  1,180  (807 ) - 
 

28,780 
Depreciation 

of fixed 
assets 

 

34  108  -  -  - 

 

142 
 

Deferred tax 
assets  179,123  59,060  1,180  (1,929 ) 

 
 

(162,261) 

 

75,173 

 
As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has accumulated fiscal losses carry forward 
amounting to US$ 4,629,056 and US$ 4,314,244, respectively. No deferred tax asset on unused 
fiscal losses has been recognized as of March 31, 2019 and 2018. The management believes 
that it is not probable that future taxable income will be available against which these unused 
fiscal losses can be utilized. 

 
 
11. TRADE PAYABLES - RELATED PARTIES 

 
        2019            2018 
             
 Related parties (Note 23)  
  PT Shriram Genetics     -   381,462 
  Shriram Bioseed Genetics     -                  3,895 
             
 Total      -   385,357 
      

 
  

 
 

 
 
12. OTHER PAYABLES 
 
        2019            2018 
             
 Related party (Note 23)  
  Bioseed Holdings Pte. Ltd     438,714   351,030 
  PT Shriram Genetics     65,947   65,947 
 Third parties       
  KAP Johannes Juara & Rekan     1,699                           - 
  Employee     1,459                           - 
  PT Prismas Jamintara     -                  5,490 
  Others     2,398   15,657 
             
 Total      510,217   438,124 
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13. SHAREHOLDER’S LOANS 
  

The Company entered into loan agreement with Bioseeds Holdings Pte. Ltd., a major shareholder, 
dated May 26, 2016 stated that the loan amount was US$ 900,000 with interest rate at 10% per 
annum. The period shall be 12 months from the date of remittance by the lender. Loan repayment 
is in whole or in part prior to its maturity period. The last renewal of this agreement is on  
June 1, 2018, and the period is extended to 12 months from June 2, 2018. 
 

On November 16, 2018, The Company entered another loan agreement with Bioseeds Holdings 
Pte. Ltd., stated that the loan amount was US$ 1,300,000 with interest rate at 3.71% per annum. 
The period shall be 12 months from the date of remittance by the lender. Loan repayment is in 
whole or in part prior to its maturity period. 
 

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the loans amounted to US$ 2,200,000 and US$ 900,000, 
respectively.  

 
14. ACCRUED EXPENSES 
 
        2019            2018 
             
 Freight      22,529   - 
 Professional fee     9,785   5,667 
 Marketing     7,383   - 
 Salary      7,246   - 
 Outsourcing     6,526   - 
 Logistic      -   2,496 
 Others      1,879   - 
             
 Total      55,348   8,163 
      

  
  

  

 
 
15.  CONSUMER FINANCING PAYABLES 

 

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has consumer financing agreements with  
PT BII Finance Center, third parties, to finance acquisitions of vehicles. The loans bear annual 
effective interest rate ranging 9.65% and will mature in 4 (four) years from the inception date of the 
respective loans. This facility is guaranteed by those respective vehicles. 
 

The future minimum payment of this consumer financing is as follow: 
 

        2019            2018 
             
 Minimum lease payment 
  Not later than 1 year    4,300  6,357 
  Later than 1 year and no later       

   than 5 years    -  1,169 
             

 

 Total        4,300  7,526 
             
 Less current portion    4,300  6,357 
             

 

 Long term portion    -  1,169 
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16. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION 
 

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company’s accrued post-employment benefit obligation based 
on the actuarial calculation prepared by PT Dayamandiri Dharmakonsilindo, an independent actuary 
as stated in its report dated April 1, 2019, and March 31, 2018 with the following main assumption: 
 

  2019   2018 

Normal retirement age  55 years  55 years 
Salary increase rate  8.0% per year  8.0% per year 
Discount rate  8.05% per year  7.15% per year 
 

Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in respect 
of the defined benefit plan are as follows: 
 

  2019   2018 
Expense recognized in profit or loss: 

Current service cost  51,632  29,139 
Interest cost  5,594  5,459 
Past service cost due to curtailment  (27,153)  - 
Liability due to recognition of past services  146,528  - 

Sub total  176,601  34,598 
Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive 

income:     
Actuarial gains (losses) arising from changes in 

financial assumption  (23,176)  4,719 

Sub total  (23,176)  4,719 

Total  153,425  39,317 
 

 The movements of the estimated for post employment benefits liabilities is as follows: 
 

  2019   2018 

Beginning balance  115,120  67,310 
Effect of changes in foreign exchange      

difference  (2,453 ) (3,226 ) 
Current service cost  51,632  29,139  
Interest cost  5,594  5,459  
Provision for excess benefit payment by the company  28,674  -  
Past service cost due to curtailment  (27,153 ) -  
Liability due to recognition of past services  146,528  -  
Adjustment of beginning balance    11,719  
Remeasurements recognized in other   

comprehensive income:      
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from experience 

adjustments  (241 ) -  
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from changes in 

financial assumption  (22,935 ) 4,719 
Excess benefits payment by the company  (28,674 ) - 

Ending balance of defined benefit obligation 
 266,092  115,120 
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17. SHARE CAPITAL 
 

The composition of shareholders as of March 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows: 
 

  

 

Number 
 of issued and  

fully paid 
shares 

 Percentage of 
ownership 

 

Total 
Bioseeds Holdings Pte. Ltd 5,082,500  95%  5,082,500 
Brigitta Hadianto Imam Rahayoe 267,500  5%  267,500 
 

Total 5,350,000  100%  5,350,000 
 

Capital Management 
 
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern whilst seeking to maximize benefits to shareholders and other stakeholders. 
 
The Company actively and regularly reviews and  manages its capital structure to ensure optimal 
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital efficiency of the 
Company, prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected capital 
expenditures and projected strategic investment opportunities. In order to maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 

 
The computation of gearing ratio are  as follows: 

 
        2019            2018 
             
 Trade payables    -   385,357 
 Shareholder’s loan    2,200,000    900,000 
 Accrued expenses    55,348   8,163 
 Other payables    510,217      438,124 
 Consumer financing payables    4,300   7,526 
             
 Total     2,769,865   1,739,170 
 

 Less cash on hand and in bank    284,329   1,186,309 
             
 Net debt    2,485,536   552,861 
             
 Total equity    (835,915)  86,152 
             
 Gearing ratio    (2.97)  6.42 

      
  

  
  

 
 
18. SALES 
 

In 2019 and 2018, this account represents sales of seeds amounted to US$ 1,133,874 and  
US$ 2,742,718, respectively. 
 
 

19. COST OF SALES 
 

In 2019 and 2018, this account represents cost of sales amounted to US$ 906,858 and  
US$ 2,489,775, respectively. 
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20. SELLING EXPENSES      
 

        2019            2018 
             
 Freight cost    49,655   48,199 
 Travelling     31,084   34,565 
 Marketing    19,996   85,259 
 Sample     1,850   - 
             
 Total     102,585   168,023 
      

  
  

  

 
 

21. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
 
        2019            2018 
             
 Salaries and allowances    551,029   536,279 
 Employee benefit (Note 16)    176,601   34,598 
 Outsourcing    61,169   11,186 
 Professional  fee    58,206   74,928 
 Traveling    23,952   21,790 
 Insurance    14,645   21,866 
 Rental     14,448   12,341 
 Telephone, internet and fax    8,476   4,833 
 Depreciation of fixed asets (Note 8)    7,616   6,227 
 Tax      6,759   5,120 
 Entertaintment    2,660   2,554 
 Utilities     2,280   - 
 Others (each below US$ 2,000)    14,672   92,468 
             
 Total     942,513   824,190 
      

  
  

  

 
 

22. OTHER EXPENSES - NET 
 

        2019            2018 
             
 Loss on foreign exchange    31,514   43,015 
 Write-off inventories (Note 6)    12,525   389,406 
 Impairment of trade receivables    -   189,493 
 Others     (183)  20,182 
             
 Net      43,856   642,096 
      

  
  

  

 
 

23. RELATED PARTIES INFORMATION 
 

Balances and transactions with related parties are as follows:  
 

 2019  2018  
     

Advance purchase (Note 7)     

PT Shriram Genetics 1,029,618  -  
     

     Percentage to total aset 46.68%  -  
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23. RELATED PARTIES INFORMATION (continued) 
 

 2019  2018  
     

Trade payables (Note 11)     

PT Shriram Genetics -  381,462  

Shriram Bioseed Genetics  -  3,895  
     

     
Total -  385,357  
     

     

Percentage to total liabilities -  20.64%  
 

Other payables (Note 12)     

Bioseed Holdings Pte. Ltd. 438,714  351,030  

PT Shriram Genetics 65,947  65,947  
     

     
Total 504,661  416,977  
     

     

Percentage to total liabilities 16.59%  22.33%  
 

Shareholder's loans (Note 13)     

Bioseed Holdings Pte. Ltd. 2,200,000  900,000  
     

     Percentage to total liabilities 72.33%  48.20%  
 

Purchases     

PT Shriram Genetics 959,339  2,489,775  
     

      

Salary, allowance and bonus     

Key Management 309,284  289,498  
     

     Percentage to total general and  
administrative expenses 32.81%  35.13%  

 

Professional fee     

Brigitta Hadianto Imam Rahayoe 11,964  10,898  
     

     Percentage to total general and  
administrative expenses 1.27%  1.32%  

 

Finance cost     

Bioseed Holdings Pte. Ltd. 110,321  90,000  
     

      
In conducting its business, the Company entered into business and financial transaction with its 
related parties as follows: 

 

Related parties 
 Nature of 

Relationships 
 

Nature of Transactions 
     

Bioseeds Holdings Pte. Ltd.  Shareholder  Shareholder’s loans, other 
payable, and finance cost. 

Shriram Bioseed Genetics   Affiliate  Trade payables. 
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23. RELATED PARTIES INFORMATION (continued) 
 

In conducting its business, the Company entered into business and financial transaction with its 
related parties as follows: 

 

Related parties 
 Nature of 

Relationships 
 

Nature of Transactions 
     

PT Shriram Genetics  Affiliate  Advance purchase, trade 
payables, other payables and 
purchases. 

Brigitta Hadianto Imam Rahayoe  Shareholder  Professional fee expense. 
 
 

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

Except for refundable deposits and consumer financing payables, the management considers that 
the carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the statement of 
financial position approximate their fair values due to short-term maturities of these financial 
instruments. 

 

For consumer financing payables, their carrying amounts approximate their fair value as the impact 
of discounted cash flow are not significant. 

 

The fair value of refundable deposits are measured at cost since the fair value cannot be reliably 
determined. 
 

The Company has no financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value as at 
March 31, 2019 and 2018. 

 
 

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The risks arising from financial instruments to which the Company’s is exposed are financial risks, 
which includes credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign exchange risk and fair value of 
financial assets and liabilities. 

 

a. Credit Risk   
 

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the normal course of business. The Company’s 
principal financial assets are cash and trade receivables. The Company’s exposure to credit risk 
is primarily attributable to receivables.  
 

 To manage the credit risk associated with cash holdings the Company holds cash in various 
financial institutions. 

 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument 
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its 
operating activities. Customer credit risk is managed by Director subject to the Company’s 
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. 
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. 

 

The table below shows the Company’s maximum exposures related to credit risk as 
of March 31, 2019 and 2018 
 

  2019   
    Past Due But Not Impaired     
  Neither 

Past Due 
Nor 

Impaired 

 
< 3 

Months 

 > 3 
months 
and < 1 

year 

 

> 1 year 

 

Allowance 

 

Total 
       
       

       
             
Cash on hand and  

in banks 
 

284,329 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

284,329 
Trade receivables - 

third parties 
 

449,912 
 

66,274 
 

30,000 
 

260,962 
 

(178,822 ) 628,326 
Other assets  7,525  -  -   -  -  7,525 
             

Total  741,766  66,274  30,000  260,962  (178,822 ) 920,180 
             

 
 



PT SHRIRAM SEED INDONESIA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As of March 31, 2019 And for the Year Then Ended  
(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise stated) 

 

 

25 
 

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

a. Credit Risk (continued)  
 

  2018   
    Past Due But Not Impaired     
  Neither 

Past Due 
Nor 

Impaired 

 
< 3 

Months 

 > 3 
months 
and < 1 

year 

 

> 1 year 

 

Allowance 

 

Total 
       
       

       
             
Cash on hand and  

in banks 
 

1,186,309 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

1,186,309 
Trade receivables - 

third parties 
 

163,664 
 

294,041 
 

120,968 
 

195,506 
 

(189,493 ) 584,686 
Other assets  15,167  -  -   -  -  15,167 
             

Total  1,365,140  294,041  120,968  195,506  (189,493 ) 1,786,162 
             

 
b. Interest Rate Risk  
 

Interest rate risk arises from change in the interest rate of shareholders loan and due to related 
party. The risk associated with such loans is not a material exposure as the Company monitors 
the fluctuation in interest rate in the future. 
 

c. Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company is unable to meet financial commitments when 
they fall due. The Company’s maintains sufficient liquidity for its operations by closely monitoring 
and managing its cash flows.  

 
The table below shows the Company’s maximum exposures related to liquidity risk as of  
March 31, 2019 and 2018: 

 
    2019   
         
         

  Less than    More than   
  1 year  1 - 2 years  2 years  Total 

         
         

Accrued expenses  55,348  -  -  55,348 
Other payables  510,217  -  -  510,217 
Consumer financing 

payables 
 

4,300 
 

- 
 

- 
 

4,300 

Shareholder’s loan 
 

2,200,000 
 

- 
 

- 
 

2,200,000 
         

Total  2,769,865  -  -  2,769,865 
         

 
    2018   
         
         

  Less than    More than   
  1 year  1 - 2 years  2 years  Total 

         
         

Trade payables  385,357  -  -  385,357 
Accrued expenses  8,163  -  -  8,163 
Other payables  438,124  -  -  438,124 
Consumer financing 

payables 
 

6,357 
 

1,169 
 

- 
 

7,526 

Shareholder’s loan 
 

900,000 
 

- 
 

- 
 

900,000 
         

Total   1,738,001  1,169  -  1,739,170 
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

d. Foreign Exchange Risk 
 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments 
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchanges rates.  
 
Management manages its foreign currency exchange risk through maintaining adequate cash in 
foreign currency to meet obligations denominated in foreign currencies when due. 

 
 

26. SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS 
 

PT Shriram Genetics 
 

 Based on  Sale and Purchase of Hybrid Corn Seed Supply Agreement dated April 1, 2015.  
PT Shriram Genetics (the seller, a related party) shall produce and sell 750 metric tons of Hybrid 
Corn B89 to the Company  for the period of April 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016, where the purchase 
price of the Hybrid Corn B89 is US$ 2.25 / Rp 30,000 per kilogram inclusive of the Value Added 
Taxes (VAT), expenses warehousing and delivery charges. The agreement was renewed for 
another 1 year, from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017 until March 31, 2019. Up to the reporting 
date, the agreement is on renewal process. 
 

 Based on Sale and Purchase of Hybrid Corn Seed Supply Agreement dated April 1, 2016.  
PT Shriram Genetics (the seller, a related party) shall produce and sell 650 metric tons of Hybrid 
Corn B89 to the Company for the period April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017, where the purchase 
price of the Hybrid Corn B89 is Rp 30,000 per kilogram inclusive of the Value Added Taxes 
(VAT), expenses warehousing and delivery charges. As per initial estimates of Buyer, the Seller 
also test produce and Import Hybrid Corn B70 and Hybrid Corn B54 for the Buyer for the period 
of April 1, 2017 – March 31, 2017, where the purchase price of the Hybrid Corn B70 / B54 is  
Rp 30,000 per kilogram inclusive of the Value Added Taxes (VAT), expenses, warehousing and 
delivery charges. 
 

 Based on Amendment of Sale and Purchase of Hybrid Corn Seed Supply Agreement dated 
March 30, 2017. The parties agreed to revise selling price, where the purchase price of the 
Hybrid Corn B89 is Rp 38,522 per kilogram, Hybrid Corn B70 is Rp 30,047 per kilogram and 
Hybrid Corn B54 is Rp 27,524 per kilogram. 

 
 Based on Sale and Purchase of Hybrid Corn Seed Supply Agreement dated April 1, 2018. PT 

Shriram Genetics (the seller, a related party) shall produce and sell 750 metric tons of Hybrid 
Corn B89 to the Company for the period of April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019, where the purchase 
price of the Hybrid Corn B89 is Rp 30,000 per kilogram inclusive of the Value Added Taxes 
(VAT), expenses warehousing and delivery charges. As per initial estimates of Buyer, the Seller 
also test produce and Import Hybrid Corn B70 and Hybrid Corn B54 for the Buyer for the period 
April 1, 2018 – March 31, 2019. Up to the reporting date, the agreement is on renewal process, 
where the purchase price of the Hybrid Corn B70 / B54 is Rp 30,000 per kilogram inclusive of 
the Value Added Taxes (VAT), expenses, warehousing and delivery charges. 

 
 
27. GOING CONCERN 
 

The Company incurred a comprehensive loss of US$ 922,067 during the year ended  
March 31, 2019, and capital deficiency amounting to US$ 835,915 as of March 31, 2019. As of that 
date, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by US$ 569,823. These conditions 
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. 
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27. GOING CONCERN (continued) 
 
 To manage the above condition, the Company’s management plan to implement the following 

actions: 
 

 Balance between sales in government subsidy and free market segments  
 Aggressive promotion and growth in free market with higher profitability   
 Stricter credit period with customers 
 Launch of new hybrid (B59) 
 Production efficiency with new hybrid with lower COGS and new tolling facilities to improve 

recovery which intern lower COGS and improve quality 
 

These financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this 
uncertainty. 
 

 
28. SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOWS INFORMATION 
 

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows: 
 

 2019 
 Beginning 

Balance  
 

Cash flows-net  
 

Ending Balance 
      

Shareholder’s loan 900,000  1,300,000  2,200,000 
Consumer financing  

Payables 7,526  (3,226 ) 
 

4,300 
 
 

29. RECLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS 
 

Certain accounts in the 2018 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the 
presentation of the 2019 financial statements, as follows: 
 

 
As Previously 

Reported 

  
As Reclassified 

  
Amount 

  
Reason of reclassification 

       

Trade payables  Other payables  17,490  
To adjust based on  
the nature of transaction 

Cost of sales  Selling expenses  43,980  To adjust based on  
the nature of transaction 

Cost of sales  
General and  

administrative expenses  16,931  
To adjust based on  
the nature of transaction 

Other expenses - net  Finance cost  3,895  To adjust based on  
the nature of transaction 

       

 
 
30. ISSUANCE OF AMENDMENTS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO PSAK, NEW PSAK AND ISAK 

 
DSAK-IAI has issued the following amendments and improvements to PSAK, new PSAK   and ISAK 
which will be applicable to the financial statements for annual periods beginning on or after: 

 
1) January 1, 2019  

 
 ISAK No. 33: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration  
 ISAK No. 34: Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments 
 Amendment to PSAK No. 24: Employee Benefits, on Curtailment or Settlement 

Program 
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30. ISSUANCE OF AMENDMENTS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO PSAK, NEW PSAK AND ISAK 
(continued) 

 
1) January 1, 2019 (continued) 

 
 PSAK No. 22: Business Combination (Improvement 2018) 
 PSAK No. 26: Borrowing Costs (Improvement 2018) 
 PSAK No. 46: Income Taxes (Improvement 2018) 
 PSAK No. 66:Joint Arrangements (Improvement 2018) 

 
2) January 1, 2020 

 
 Amendments to PSAK No. 15: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Long-

term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures  
 Amendments to PSAK No. 62: Applying PSAK 71: Financial Instruments with PSAK 

62: Insurance Contract  
 Amendments to PSAK No. 71: Financial Instruments, on Prepayment Features with 

Negative Compensation 
 PSAK No. 71: Financial Instruments 
 PSAK No. 72: Revenue from Contract with Customers 
 PSAK No. 73: Lease 

 
The Company is still evaluating the effects of those amendments and improvements to PSAK, new 
PSAK and ISAK and has not yet determined the related effects on the financial statements. 
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